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2017

Operating Revenues
$
63,203,709 $
Operating Expenses
$
67,556,225 $
Change in net position prior to distribution
$
(5,734,436 ) $
Plant in service, at original cost
$
149,886,151 $
Construction work in progress
$
2,054,791 $
Accumulated depreciation
$
74,457,661 $
Gross additions to utility plant during year
$
4,241,518 $
Gas properties, at original cost
$
87,575,696 $
Accumulated depletion
$
72,159,254 $
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
$
135,123,307 $
				
Gross Sales (Mcf)
10,542,101
Throughput (Mcf)
12,541,856
Customers (peak)
29,188
Degree days
772

2016
56,421,788
53,545,870
668,395
145,948,707
1,985,718
   70,752,753
5,776,022
87,569,155
61,540,461
151,267,459
9,082,003
11,781,765
29,101
959
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we are committed to our company values –

company overview
It is the vision of The Southeast Alabama Gas District (Southeast Gas) to become the public utility leader, recognized
for innovatively serving and growing our regional community. From our Board Members to our employees, we are
committed to our company values of Integrity, Respect, Ethical Behavior, Accountability, Leadership and Open
Communication.
On January 29, 1952, Southeast Gas was created by 14 cities that retain ownership today. Abbeville, Andalusia,
Brundidge, Dothan, Elba, Enterprise, Eufaula, Fort Deposit, Greenville, Headland, Luverne, Opp, Ozark and Troy
work in cooperation to provide their communities with natural gas service and numerous opportunities for economic
growth. Southeast Gas also provides natural gas service to the franchise communities of Ashford, Baker Hill, Brantley,
Coosada, Cottonwood, Daleville, Gantt, Glenwood, Level Plains, Midland City, Montgomery, Napier Field, New
Brockton, Newton, Newville, Opelika, Pike Road, Pinckard, Red Level, River Falls and Rutledge.
Southeast Gas’ mission is to provide, within our regional communities, reliable, competitively priced natural gas,
aggressively grow our customer base, provide quality care, recruit new industries, and become the workplace of choice.
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No other organization, business or entity has the impact on our region
that is made by Fort Rucker. With an annual impact of $1.56 Billion
and more than 23,000 jobs related to the base, Fort Rucker is the
lifeblood…the anchor…the Heartbeat of the Wiregrass.
Southeast gas is strongly committed to the economic development and
growth of the region and nothing is more important than supporting
Fort Rucker’s future. So, launching and leading Fort Rucker: The
Heartbeat of the Wiregrass, a grassroots coalition of local citizens,
businesses, military personnel and others in support of the base, was a
natural fit for Southeast Gas.
Governor Kay Ivey, mayors from across the region, many of the
Southeast Gas Board Members, and representatives close to Fort
Rucker attended the unveiling of the initiative on May 30, 2017. The
Facebook page for The Heartbeat of the Wiregrass coalition gained
massive support, and now has more than 11,000 followers. The
initiative’s website WiregrassHeartbeat.com has had more than 18,000
visitors and 2,300 supporters have joined the coalition through the site.
The Heartbeat of the Wiregrass has a goal that’s simple: ensure that
Fort Rucker continues to build on its irreplaceable place in our national
defense strategy, remains the economic driver for the southeastern
corner of Alabama and is forever the strong social backbone of dozens
of communities. This is a long-term effort to not only highlight the
importance of Fort Rucker to the region but also to show the area’s
support for its mission and people.

$1.56 BILLION:

Economic impact
to Wiregrass
23,146: Jobs
provided to
Wiregrass
region alone
17%: Percentage
of wages in
Wiregrass region
$1 Billion: Annual
payments to
military retirees in
Wiregrass region

Fort Rucker supports over 23,000 jobs and
is a key pillar of the economic foundation
we are building in the Wiregrass. Beyond
that, Fort Rucker is a part of who we are.
There is nothing else like it in the world
and it must be protected.

heartbeat speakers

QUOTES
Our region has always stood together to show our
support for Fort Rucker and the men and women who
serve there. Fort Rucker: Heartbeat of the Wiregrass
will be an ongoing grassroots-led effort to reaffirm
our continued support and promote the importance
of Fort Rucker not only to our area but our nation. The
success of this effort by our citizens joining together
will send a powerful message that we appreciate and
stand firm with Fort Rucker.

I was pleased to attend the BRAC hearing in
support of Fort Rucker in 2016. As governor,
standing up for our military institutions, like
Fort Rucker, is one of my top priorities. I’m
excited to see local leaders coming together
to build a grassroots coalition in support of
Fort Rucker. This facility is critical to Alabama’s
economy and America’s defense.

– Former Mayor Mike Schmitz, Dothan

–Governor Kay Ivey, Alabama

PIKE ROAD OFFICE

Community.

It’s a place.
It’s a state of mind.

Community. It’s a place. It’s a state of mind. For Southeast Gas, it’s

a commitment. Our core business directive since 1952 is to provide
natural gas as a vehicle for community growth. Sometimes we pour
into our communities through strong service and a commitment to
quality customer care. At other times, we create initiatives like the
Fort Rucker: Heartbeat of the Wiregrass coalition. And, sometimes,
we take a look around, and we find a new place to put down roots –
like we have done in Pike Road.
Our company has found another new home among the people of
Pike Road. As we started our search for the perfect location in East
Montgomery and Pike Road, it soon became apparent that something
near the Montgomery connector would be just the right spot. We
worked with SCF Erections, and plans for our new building soon went
from working drawings to a full set of plans and then to our fresh,
inviting office that officially opened on February 13, 2017.
More than 1,000 customers in the Pike Road and East Montgomery
area now receive service from Southeast Gas, and new construction in
the area continues to provide opportunities for many more customers
in the future.
The opening of our office in Pike Road marked our first new office
in more than 20 years. And, while it does provide a payment site for
consumers in the area and a facility to host developers, city officials
and consultants, it is more than that. Our Pike Road office serves as a
symbol of our investment in the area and our willingness to partner
with entities in Pike Road and Montgomery for the benefit of the
region as a whole.

More than 1,000
customers in the
Pike Road and East
Montgomery area
now receive service from
Southeast Gas, and new
construction in the area
continues to provide
opportunities for many
more customers
in the future.
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Last year as I penned this letter for our 2016 Annual
Report, Southeast Gas and our region had just recorded
our warmest winter on record. At that time we had no
idea that in 2017, we would again shatter the previous
year’s record and have a second consecutive winter that
was our warmest ever.
A “normal” Heating Degree Day Deficiency (calculated
based on every degree of decrease from the standard
average temperature of 65 degrees) for our area is 1,466.
In the winter of 2016, we recorded our warmest to date
with 959, but then that number went even lower in
2017 with only 772. Financially, we were battling lowerthan-budgeted tariff sales for a second straight year,
but the challenge did not defeat us. Once again, our
management team was creative, seeking unique ways
to cut costs and continue to provide a safe, efficient
system and services for our industrial, commercial
and residential customers. We also took proactive
steps toward rate stability by entering into another 30year prepay agreement in July, and hedging additional
volumes of gas due to historically-low prices.
While the mild temperatures had a significant impact
on our throughput (we experienced a 8.7% decrease
in sales to our tariff customers compared to 2016, and
2016 tariff sales were 10.6% less than in 2015), the
weather allowed us to spend valuable time on system
maintenance and installation of new distribution
mains. We expanded our distribution lines by 89,472
feet (almost 17 miles) and added 659 new services
in 2017. Our primary growth continued in Dothan,
Enterprise, Pike Road and Montgomery. These towns
alone accounted for 60% of our new distribution lines
and 71% of our new services.
From a marketing perspective, 2017 was a pivotal
year for our company as we officially released our new
tradename and logo as Southeast Gas, launched the Fort
Rucker: Heartbeat of the Wiregrass and ramped up our
community presence in Pike Road. Our promotional
dollars “worked harder” last year through campaigns
and activities that allowed us to reach diverse consumer
6

groups with earned media placement, grassroots
employee-driven communication and social media
visibility surrounding our major activities.
Our direct approach to consumers also made a
turn in 2017 when we shifted the responsibilities of
our marketing representatives from geographical
territories to market-segmented responsibilities. Now,
we have professionals who can guide potential and
existing commercial and residential customers with a
heightened level of expertise. In addition, we expanded
our construction capabilities by incorporating a new
boring rig and crew. This equipment enhancement
allowed us to have greater flexibility in our timing
of projects, and again, gives our customers more
personalized and prompt attention.
Excellent customer care did not hinge solely on new
equipment or different employee responsibilities in
2017, though. We have an incredible team. Their
efforts during 2017 resulted in a greater stabilization
of our residential and small commercial customer base
through our company growth initiative and a second
straight year of customer growth, defying customer
trends for other natural gas utilities in the Southeast. Our
group presented and implemented ideas that powered
appliance sales to existing customers who chose to
remain customers rather than fuel-switching. Frontline employees rose up as leaders who participated
in customer-engagement activities and community
events. We delivered on our promises and we began
driving local conversations toward the compelling case
for continued use of natural gas.
Those conversations did not stop at a local level. Our
industry faces some complex challenges. Political
agendas and big business are shaping attitudes on
fossil fuels and specifically the direct use of natural
gas. Through our involvement in national groups like
the American Public Gas Association and the Energy
Solutions Center and in the statewide Alabama Natural
Gas Association (ANGA), Southeast Gas is educating
a broader audience about natural gas and its essential

board of directors
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part in consumer’s lives. As current Board Chair for APGA, I have a unique opportunity to give Southeast Gas a
national voice concerning best consumer practices, new technology needs, efficiency standards and full-fuel cycle
measurement.
One thing 2017 taught me and our company was that no matter what external challenges we face, our fundamentals
endure. We are service. We are security. We are warmth. We are Southeast Gas. As we close the book on 2017,
I’m optimistic about the future of the natural gas industry and I’m excited about the future of our company!

J. Gregory Henderson President & CEO

SEATED LEFT TO RIGHT: Robert Forbes, Director of Engineering; Jimmy Black, Western
Division Director of Operations; Greg Henderson, President & CEO.
STANDING LEFT TO RIGHT: Les Culpepper, Director of Gas Management; Shannon Jackson,
Director of Marketing & Communications; Terry Barnes, Central Division Director of
Operations; Lori Messick, Director of Finance and Administration & CFO; Steve Duebelt,
Eastern Division Director of Operations; Lex Colquett, Director of Corporate Services.
Not pictured, Wiley Lott, Director of External Affairs & Economic Development.

MANAGEMENT
TEAM
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Corporate Structure — The Southeast Alabama Gas District (“Southeast Gas”) is a public corporation created
on January 29, 1952, under Act No. 762 (the “Act”), General Laws of Alabama by 14 towns in southeast Alabama.
It was established to provide natural gas service to domestic, commercial, and industrial customers located in 35
communities in the southeast portion of the state. Southeast Gas owns and operates 622 miles of transmission
lines as well as 1,624 miles of distribution lines. Attached to those lines are approximately 30,000 customers
located in 18 counties in southeast Alabama.
Member and Franchise Towns — The 14 towns that formed Southeast Gas are known as member towns and are
entitled to all distributable income that is earned by Southeast Gas. Any portion that is earned but not distributed
is carried forward to future years for distribution at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The other 21 towns
are franchise towns and are only entitled to a fee of 1½% to 3% of the gross sales of gas in those towns.
Authority — The Act provides that Southeast Gas will establish rates and charges to produce revenues sufficient
to cover its costs, including debt service. Since the Board of Directors is composed of elected and appointed
representatives from each member town, it serves as the rate making regulatory body, which oversees Southeast Gas.
The Act exempts Southeast Gas from all taxes and allows the issuance of tax exempt bonds and other obligations to
finance the activities of Southeast Gas
Proprietary Funds — Southeast Gas operates only one type of proprietary fund, the enterprise fund. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business type activities.
Gas Supplies — Southeast Gas receives gas from external supply agreements along with an internal source.
Southeast Gas has entered into several long term supply arrangements from which Southeast Gas is expected to
receive a firm supply of discounted gas during their 10–30 year terms. Under these pay-as-you-go arrangements,
Southeast Gas has committed to buy specified volumes of gas at prevailing market prices less a discount when, and
if, gas is delivered. The internal source of gas is from the purchase of a working and royalty interest in producing
gas properties located in the coalbed methane fields in the Black Warrior Basin area near Tuscaloosa, Alabama.
If no additional wells are drilled, the existing wells have lives of 4 to 22 years with a current annual decline rate
of approximately 8%. The majority of this gas is subject to long term gas sales contracts to customers who have
posted adequate credit assurance to cover unpaid gas receipts. As a secondary supply source, Southeast Gas has
contracts in place to purchase gas from local natural gas producers residing in Southeast Gas’ service territory.
This gas amounts to approximately 5,000 Mmbtu per day with an expected well life of five to seven years.
Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to understanding
the data provided in the financial statements.
Overview of the Financial Statements — This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction
to Southeast Gas’ basic financial statements. These financial statements are designed to provide readers with an
overview of Southeast Gas’ finances, in a manner similar to private sector businesses.
The statements of net position present information on all of Southeast Gas’ assets, liabilities and deferred inflows
and outflows of resources with the difference between the two reported as net position. Current assets include
significant cash reserves that are required by Southeast Gas’ Certificate of Incorporation and various bond
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indentures with current liabilities consisting primarily of gas purchases and distributions payable to members.
The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position present information showing how Southeast
Gas’ net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., customer receivables and accrued retirement benefits).
Condensed Financial Statements — The following table reflects the condensed statements of net position and is
compared to the previous two years.

September 30,

2017

Change

2016

Change

2015

Assets
Current and other assets
Capital assets, net

$ 39,554,325 $ (5,368,083 ) $ 44,922,408 $ (4,864,510 ) $ 49,786,918
92,899,723		
(10,310,643 )		 103,210,366		 (3,869,696 )		 107,080,062

(15,678,726 )		 148,132,774		 (8,734,206 )		 156,866,980
Total assets		 132,454,048		
Deferred outflows of resources		

2,669,259		

(465,426 )		

3,134,685		

1,076,109			

2,058,576

(975,305 )		 16,031,828		
(466,102 )		
(7,831,517 )		 52,645,780		 (5,928,948 )		

16,497,930
58,574,728

Liabilities		
Current liabilities		
Other liabilities		
Total liabilities		

15,056,523		
44,814,263		

59,870,786		(8,806,822 )		

75,072,658

Deferred inflows of resources		

2,522,706

1,586,927		 1,586,927			

-

Net Position		
Net investment in capital assets		
Restricted for debt service		
Unrestricted		

62,418,473		 (6,231,223 )		 68,649,696		 (916,728 )		
1,406,770		(1,472,217 )		 2,878,987		 (2,007,718 )		
8,904,572		
(569,669 )		
9,474,241		
74,472			

69,566,424
4,886,705
9,399,769

Total net position

$ 72,729,815

935,779			

68,677,608		 (6,395,050 )		

$ (8,273,109 )

$ 81,002,924

$ (2,849,974 )

$ 83,852,898

For more detailed information, see the accompanying statements of net position.
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The following table compares the revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the current and two previous
fiscal years.

September 30,

Operating revenues

2017

Change

$ 63,203,709		 $

2016

Change

6,781,921		 $ 56,421,788		 $ (12,315,093 )

2015

$ 68,736,881

Operating expenses		 67,556,225			 14,010,355			 53,545,870			 (9,793,647 )		 63,339,517
Operating income (loss)		 (4,352,516 )		

(7,228,434 )		

2,875,918			

Non-operating revenues (expenses)		 (1,381,920 )		

825,603			

(2,207,523 )		

(2,521,446 )		

5,397,364

221,346			 (2,428,869 )

Increase (decrease) in net position										
before distributions		 (5,734,436 )		 (6,402,831 )		

668,395			

(2,538,673 )		
979,696			
Distributions		

(3,518,369 )		

1,318,487			 (4,836,856 )

Change in net position		 (8,273,109 )		

(2,849,974 )		

(981,613 )		 (1,868,361 )

Net position - beginning		 81,002,924			
Net position - ending

$ 72,729,815

5,423,135			

(2,849,974 )		 83,852,898			

(2,300,100 )		

2,968,495

(1,868,361 )		 85,721,259

$ (8,273,109 ) $ 81,002,924		 $ (2,849,974 )

$ 83,852,898

For more detailed information, see the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Financial Analysis — 2017 Compared to 2016 and 2015
Operating Revenues — Distribution Revenue — Operating revenues are composed of revenues from distribution
and the gas properties. In 2016, distribution revenue saw a $10,406,000 decline due to the warm weather and a
decline in wholesale gas prices. For 2017, distribution revenues increased $7,708,000 as a result of higher industrial
volumes sold and a slight rebound in gas prices.
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Distribution revenue is derived from the sales to tariff customers, industrial customers, and gas sold for resale.
Mcf sold for distribution revenue customers and the changes for each year are shown below.

Mcf sold

2017

Change

Tariff		
1,661,696		 (158,714 )		

2016

1,820,410		

Change

(216,286 )		

2015

2,036,696

7,907,376		1,637,241			 6,270,135		 (169,371 )		 6,439,506
Industrial		
973,029
(18,429 )		
Resale		

991,458		

(585,457 )		

1,576,915

10,542,101		1,460,098			 9,082,003		 (971,114 )		10,053,117
Total		

The decrease in tariff units sold is due to warm weather over the past two years. The increase in industrial Mcf
sold is due largely to the addition of an industrial customer.
Operating Revenues — Production Revenue — Revenues from the gas properties, production revenue, were
derived from sales to contracted third parties based upon index pricing. Production revenue decreased $1,909,000
in 2016 compared to the prior year and $926,000 in 2017. Layered on top of the index price were hedges, which
were intended to produce a margin above the operating expenses of the gas properties. The proceeds from the
hedge transactions decreased $2,381,000 and $1,118,000 in 2017 and 2016, respectively, as a result of the higher
valued hedges expiring and being replaced with lower values. Production from the gas properties declined by
244,000 Mcf in 2017 and 254,000 Mcf in 2016, due to the natural decline of the wells. The sales price, with the
effects of the hedges included, decreased $0.04 per Mcf in 2017 and $1.07 per Mcf in 2016.
Operating Expenses — The increase of operating expenses from 2016 to 2017 was primarily an increase in depletion
due to an impairment of the gas wells coupled with an increase in the commodity cost of gas. The decrease from
2015 to 2016 was primarily a decrease in the cost of gas sold as a result of a decrease in the commodity gas cost.
The per unit cost of gas increased to $3.39 per Mcf in 2017 compared to $2.79 per Mcf in 2016, but the per unit
cost of gas decreased from $3.62 per Mcf in 2015 to $2.79 per Mcf in 2016. Also contributing to the increase in
2017 from 2016, was an increase of 6,032,000 Mcf purchased due to an increase in sales volume. Distribution
expenses increased $1,119,000 in 2017 compared to 2016 and decreased $1,161,000 in 2016 compared to 2015.
Depreciation expense increased $237,000 in 2017 compared to 2016 as well as $401,000 in 2016 compared to
2015 as a result of an increase in general plant. Gas properties operating expenses decreased $221,000 in 2017 and
$1,161,000 in 2016 as a result of cost cutting measures enacted by the operator.
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Nonoperating Income and Expense — Interest expense in 2017 decreased $469,000 compared to 2016 as a result
of refunding the 2006A Bonds. This transaction is explained more fully in Note 3. Interest expense increased in
2016 by $46,000 as a result of amortizing a full year of bond expenses related to the Series 2015 Bonds.
Unearned Revenue from Gas Properties — In April 2003 the Board of Directors adopted a Contingency Reserve
Policy which deferred all income generated from the gas properties in excess of $0.20 per Mmbtu until the
Contingency Reserve Fund was fully funded. In June 2013, the related Series 2003A and Series 2003B Bonds
were retired eliminating the requirement to maintain the Contingency Reserve and as such the District then
recognized $21,100,000 of unearned income. The remaining balance is being proportionately recognized over
the next ten years. Southeast Gas recognized $629,000 in 2017 and 2016 leaving $3,772,000 to be recognized at
September 30, 2017.
Distributions to Member Municipalities — Southeast Gas’ Board chose to distribute $2,539,000 to member
municipalities for 2017 with no amount remaining undistributed for future periods. Distributions for 2016 were
$3,518,000 and $4,837,000 for 2015.
Total Assets and Total Liabilities — Southeast Gas had total assets at September 30, 2017 of $132,454,000 of which
$36,850,000 was current assets, $92,900,000 capital assets, and $2,704,000 other noncurrent assets. At September
30, 2017, Southeast Gas had construction work in progress of $2,055,000, which consisted of approximately
$1,215,000 for distribution, transmission and service line installations, $221,000 for station and line replacements,
and $353,000 for purchases of heavy equipment, vehicles, computers and software as well as the construction of a
new building in the amount of $266,000. Southeast Gas had total liabilities of $59,871,000 at September 30, 2017,
of which $15,057,000 was current liabilities and the remaining $44,814,000 was noncurrent liabilities.
Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources — Southeast Gas had deferred outflows of resources, previously
reported as assets, which represent the fair value of derivatives as well as changes in assumptions, differences in
actual and expected results and losses on investments related to the defined benefit pension plan. These amounts
were $2,669,000 at September 30, 2017 and $3,135,000 at September 30, 2016. In addition, Southeast Gas also
had deferred inflows of resources related to the pension plan and fair value of derivatives. These amounts were
$2,523,000 at September 30, 2017 and $1,587,000 at September 30, 2016.
Liquidity and Capital Resources — Southeast Gas had $21,511,000 in unrestricted cash and investments at
September 30, 2017. In addition, there was restricted cash and investments of $1,407,000 invested in bond debt
service funds and capital project funds. Accounts receivable from customers and gas properties totaled $5,377,000
and $246,000, respectively, compared to accounts payable of $3,764,000 and a distribution payable to member
towns of $2,539,000. Gas in storage at September 30, 2017, had a balance of $2,895,000 with an average cost of
$3.06 per Mcf.
In April 2013, Southeast Gas entered into a three-year line of credit agreement for a maximum amount of
$10,000,000. This agreement was renewed April 2016 and expires April 2019. This line is used to fund general
corporate needs such as gas storage purchases for inventory and monthly liquidity. The balance due on this line of
credit at September 30, 2017 was $0 and $500,000 at September 30, 2016.
Net Position — Southeast Gas had total net position at September 30, 2017, of $72,730,000, a decrease of

12

20
17
Annual report

$8,273,000 from September 30, 2016. Net position invested in capital assets totaled $62,418,000 at September 30,
2017. Total restricted net position was $1,407,000 composed of bond debt service funds and capital project funds.
The remaining unrestricted net position was $8,905,000 at September 30, 2017.
Economic Outlook — Southeast Gas has a well-diversified gas supply and hedging program to temper the effect
of gas price volatility and actively pursues long-term gas supply at discount prices. Southeast Gas continues to
pursue economic development opportunities to grow and expand its customer base. In addition, Southeast Gas’
rate structure offers a sound cost recovery framework. As such, there are no known conditions or decisions that
will have a significant impact on Southeast Gas’ financial position in the near future.

°°°°°
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Southeast Alabama Gas District (“Southeast Gas”),
which comprise the statements of net position as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Southeast Gas as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 8-13 and the schedule of funding progress for the Southeast Alabama Gas District Premium
Supplement Plan and the schedules of changes in net pension liability and related ratios and contributions for
the Southeast Alabama Gas District Retirement Income Plan on pages 49-51 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Southeast Gas’ basic financial statements. The supplementary information of estimated gas reserves
in Note 17 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. This supplementary information is the responsibility of Southeast Gas’ management. Such information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on this supplementary information.

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.
Enterprise, Alabama
January 26, 2018
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September 30,

2017

2016

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
$
15,326,599
$
19,750,066			
Bond debt service funds-restricted		
331,250 		
1,398,529
Capital project funds-restricted
1,075,520			
1,864,957
Investments		
6,184,777 		
7,102,059
Receivable due from broker		
1,162,707 		
1,387,485			
Customer accounts receivable — net of allowance for 							
uncollectible accounts of $171,592 and $220,402 in 							
2017 and 2016, respectively		
5,377,320			
4,290,260
Receivables from gas properties		
246,161 		
353,617
Other accounts receivable		
888,104 		
392,171
Materials and supplies		
3,005,486			
2,855,507		
Gas in storage		
2,894,786 		
2,148,175
Regulatory asset - hedging activities
- 		
69,843
Prepayments and other		
357,763 		
346,987			
		
Total current assets		
36,850,473 		
41,959,656			
			
		
NONCURRENT ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS		
Gas utility plant in service — at original cost
149,886,151 		
145,948,707		
Construction work in progress		
2,054,791			
1,985,718			
Less accumulated depreciation
(74,457,661 )
(70,752,753 )
				
Gas utility plant — net		
77,483,281			
77,181,672			
		
Gas properties — at original cost		
87,575,696			
87,569,155		
Less accumulated depletion		
(72,159,254 )
(61,540,461 )		

Gas properties — net		
15,416,442 		
26,028,694			
		
Total capital assets		
92,899,723 		
103,210,366			
						
Regulatory assets 		
2,253,852 		
2,592,973		
Other assets		
450,000 		
369,779			
		
Total noncurrent assets		
95,603,575 		
106,173,118

132,454,048 		
148,132,774
TOTAL ASSETS		

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan
2,669,259 		
3,064,333
Fair value of derivatives		
- 		
70,352
		
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
2,669,259 		
3,134,685
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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135,123,307

$

151,267,459

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to financial statements.					
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September 30,

2017

2016

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
$
3,253,750 $
3,040,000
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable (including amounts for gas purchases of						
3,764,342
3,035,305
$2,412,956 and $2,075,928 in 2017 and 2016, respectively)
2,538,673
3,518,369
Distributions payable to member municipalities
2,835,464
2,889,044
Customer deposits
500,000
Line of credit		
Regulatory liabilities — current		
203,280
165,397
2,461,014
2,883,713
Accrued expenses
					
Total current liabilities
15,056,523		
16,031,828
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Series 2006A bonds		
Series 2015A bonds
Series 2015B bonds
Series 2015C bonds		
Series 2017 bonds
Unamortized premium on 2006A bonds
Asset retirement obligations
Accrued other postretirement benefit liability
Regulatory liabilities — noncurrent
Total noncurrent liabilities		
TOTAL LIABILITIES

8,538,750
5,273,750
1,667,500		
11,747,500
2,531,841
613,647
14,441,275

13,515,000
9,895,000
5,575,000		
2,195,000
340,670
2,437,605
575,397
18,112,108

44,814,263

52,645,780

59,870,786

68,677,608

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
		
Fair value of derivatives		
24,332		
2,498,374
1,586,927
Pension Plan
Total deferred inflows of resources		

2,522,706		

1,586,927

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted		

62,418,473
1,406,770
8,904,572

68,649,696
2,878,987
9,474,241

Total net position		

72,729,815

81,002,924

$

135,123,307

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to financial statements.

$

151,267,459
(Concluded)
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September 30,
OPERATING REVENUES

2017
$

63,203,709

2016
$

56,421,788

OPERATING EXPENSES		
Natural gas purchases		
27,347,458 		
19,198,385
18,996,313 		
17,877,174
Distribution expenses		
4,115,673 		
3,878,347
Depreciation			
6,383,752 		
6,604,629
Gas properties operating expenses		
3,164,514 		
5,987,335
Depletion of gas properties		
7,548,515			
Depletion - impairment of gas properties		

Total operating expenses		
67,556,225 		
53,545,870 		
			
OPERATING INCOME		
(4,352,516 )
2,875,918
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)		
Interest income		
Interest expense		
Other — net			
Net nonoperating expense		

82,917 		
(978,085 )
(1,115,408 )

65,817
(1,447,198 )
(1,454,798 )

(2,010,576 )

(2,836,179 )

628,656 		

Unearned revenue from Gas Properties

628,656

(5,734,436 )		
668,395		
CHANGE IN NET POSITION PRIOR TO DISTRIBUTION		
(2,538,673 )
(3,518,369 )
DISTRIBUTIONS TO MEMBER MUNICIPALITIES		

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 		
(8,273,109 )
(2,849,974 )
81,002,924 		
83,852,898
NET POSITION — Beginning of year		
NET POSITION — End of year

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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September 30,

2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
$
Receipts from distribution customers
Receipts from gas properties customers		
Payments to suppliers		
Payments on (receipts from) hedging activities — net		
Payments to employees		
Other receipts		

61,392,251		 $
52,963,406
8,677,251 		
9,533,033
(52,080,731 )		
(40,514,339 )
1,253,099 		
1,068,940
(13,366,127 )
(12,923,105 )
(53,580 )		
169,542

Net cash provided by operating activities		

2016

5,822,163 		

10,297,477

INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Net (purchases) redemption of investments		
917,280
(35,090 )
82,917 		
65,817
Interest receipts		
Other		
(182,305 )
(129,208 )
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities		

817,892

(98,481 )

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
- 		
500,000
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable
(500,000 ) 		
Principal payments on notes payable		
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities		

(500,000 )		

500,000

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
14,565,000 		
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
(18,303,750 )
(2,920,000 )
Principal payments on long-term debt		
(174,102 )		
Bond issuance costs		
(4,241,518 )
(5,776,022 )
Capital expenditures		
(747,499 )
(1,230,057 )
Interest payments		
(3,518,369 )
(4,836,856 )
Distributions paid to member municipalities		
789,437 		
2,095,940		
Capital project funds
1,067,279 		
(102,424 )
Bond debt service funds
Net cash used in capital financing activities		

(10,563,522 )

(12,769,419 )

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		
(4,423,467 )
(2,070,423 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of year		
19,750,066 		
21,820,489
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year
See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to financial statements.

$

15,326,599

$

19,750,066
(Continued)
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September 30,

2017

2016		

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET						
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
$
(4,352,516 )
$
2,875,918
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation		
4,115,673 		
Depletion of gas properties
3,164,514 		
Depletion - impairment of gas properties		
7,548,515			
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:			
Customer accounts receivable
(1,087,060 ) 		
Other accounts receivable
(495,933 ) 		
Receivables from gas properties
107,456 		
Materials and supplies
(149,979 ) 		
Gas in storage
(746,611 ) 		
Prepayments and other		
161,796 		
Other deferred charges
(1,815,877 )
Accounts payable
729,037 		
Customer deposits
(53,580 ) 		
Accrued expenses
(422,699 ) 		
Regulatory liabilities - pension
(1,306,521 )
Hedging activities — net
1,108,031 		
Deferred outflows — pension		
395,074 		
Other — net		
(1,077,157 )
10,174,679 		
Total adjustments		
		
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
$
5,822,163
$

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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3,878,347		
5,987,335
11,932
114,584
37,147
169,104
542,609
79,194
(1,738,938 )
119,969
169,542
164,262
(1,105,188 )
1,020,137
(613,554 )
(1,414,923 )
7,421,559
10,297,477 		

(Concluded )
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business — The Southeast Alabama Gas District (“Southeast Gas”) is an Alabama-based, municipally owned
corporation with two primary lines of business: natural gas distribution (“Distribution”) and natural gas
production (“Production”). The Distribution business provides natural gas service to residential, commercial,
and industrial customers located in 35 communities in the southeast portion of Alabama. The Production
business owns certain working and royalty interests in producing natural gas properties in the Black Warrior
Basin area near Tuscaloosa, Alabama. Southeast Gas also offers natural gas operated merchandise for sale to
the public and provides gas transportation services to qualified industrial customers.
Regulatory Accounting — The accounting records of Southeast Gas are maintained on the accrual basis in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) issued
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) applicable to governmental entities that use
proprietary fund accounting. The accounts are maintained substantially in accordance with the Uniform
System of Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). Items such as
merchandise and installation revenue, cost of merchandise and installation, and certain distributions are
classified as nonoperating income or expense in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net
position consistent with the FERC Uniform System of Accounts as these items do not impact the ratemaking
process, but for cash flow purposes, these items are considered operating activities. Southeast Gas also complies
with policies and practices prescribed by its Board of Directors and with practices common in the natural gas
distribution and production industries. As the Board of Directors sets rates on a cost of service basis, Southeast
Gas follows the guidance contained in GASB Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements”, paragraphs
476 – 500, for regulated operations, which provides for the reporting of assets and liabilities consistent with
the economic effect of the rate structure. Under GASB 62, regulatory assets are recorded to reflect probable
future revenues associated with certain costs that are expected to be recovered from customers through the
ratemaking process, and regulatory liabilities are recorded to reflect probable future reductions in revenues
associated with amounts that are expected to be credited to customers through the ratemaking process.
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Southeast Gas’ regulatory assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

September 30,

2017
Current

REGULATORY ASSETS:
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt
Unamortized debt expense
CNG incentive program
Gas hedges (Note 11)
Total regulatory assets
REGULATORY LIABILITIES:
Gas hedges (Note 11)
Annuity payable
Unearned income — gas properties (Note 5)
Unearned gas supply project rebates
Net pension liability
Other retirement liability
Total regulatory liabilities

$

$
$

$

2016

Noncurrent

- $
- 		
- 		
- 		
- $

1,805,772		 $
134,845 		
-		
313,235 		
2,253,852
$

97,814		 $
-		 $
- 		
412,500			
- 		
3,771,935		
- 		
3,385,261		
- 		
6,492,168		
105,466 		
379,411		
203,280 $ 14,441,275
$

Current

Noncurrent

- $
- 		
- 		
69,843			
69,843 $
82,630
82,767
165,397

$
		
		
		
		
		
$

1,926,143
411,628
172,572
82,630
2,592,973		
-		
322,500		
4,400,591		
5,210,917
8,111,644
66,456
18,112,108

Related Entities — In 2004, Southeast Gas and Municipal Gas Authority of Georgia (“MGAG”) formed a
limited liability corporation, Municipal Gas Marketing Services, LLC (“MGMS”), with equal ownership, for
the purpose of acquiring, transporting, and marketing the sale of retail gas primarily from the Black Warrior
Basin area. This transaction is further explained in Note 5.
Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and (2) the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Funding Requirements — The Articles of Incorporation of Southeast Gas (the “Articles”) require, before
distributions can be made to member municipalities, Southeast Gas to maintain (1) a capital reserve equal to
a minimum of 1.25 times the average of the prior five years’ capital expenditures of Distribution ($6,839,819
as of September 30, 2017) and (2) an operating reserve equal to a minimum of 50% of the estimated expenses
of Distribution for the next 12-month period, excluding purchased gas cost ($11,833,093 as of September
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30, 2017). The Articles provide for the distribution to member municipalities of an amount not exceeding
annual net distributable income, defined as the excess of net assets plus depreciation and amortization over
(i) all required principal and interest payments on outstanding bonds and required payments into special
funds under any mortgage; (ii) all sums expended during the year for capital additions and improvements
or for retirement of debt not previously funded and paid from internally generated funds; (iii) the required
operating reserve; and (iv) the required capital reserve.
Any of the amounts discussed in (ii) above can be excluded from the computation of annual net distributable
income by resolution of Southeast Gas’ Board of Directors to the extent Southeast Gas has current assets
sufficient to enable Southeast Gas to exclude such amounts from the computation. During the years ended
September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Board of Directors did not exclude any amounts from the computation. If
the distribution is less than the annual net distributable income, as defined, the remainder is carried forward
to future years to be distributed to member municipalities at the discretion of the Board of Directors. For
the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Board of Directors approved a distribution of $2,538,673
and $3,518,369, respectively, leaving no net distributable income available for future distributions to
member municipalities.
Restricted Assets — It is the policy of Southeast Gas to use restricted assets before unrestricted assets when
both are available to fund specific expenditures.
Gas Utility Plant — Gas utility plant is stated at original cost. Such costs include direct labor and materials,
applicable general and administrative costs, and payroll related costs such as taxes, pension, and other fringe
benefits. Estimated interest cost associated with property under construction, based upon the interest rate on
borrowings for specific projects, is capitalized as an allowance for borrowed funds used during construction.
Southeast Gas had no capitalized interest for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016.
Gas Properties — Southeast Gas uses the successful efforts method of accounting for exploration and
development costs. The costs of drilling exploratory wells are capitalized pending determination as to whether
Southeast Gas has discovered proved commercial reserves. If proved commercial reserves are not discovered,
such drilling costs are expensed. The costs of drilling developmental wells are capitalized as costs are incurred.
Southeast Gas had no capitalized well costs in 2017 or 2016.
Depreciation — Depreciation is provided based on a straight line composite rate, which approximated 2.80%
and 2.73% of the cost of the depreciable gas utility plant in service for the years ended September 30, 2017 and
2016, respectively. When property subject to depreciation is retired or otherwise disposed of in the normal
course of business, its original cost, together with its cost of removal, less salvage, is charged to accumulated
depreciation.
Depletion of Gas Properties — The provision for depletion of proved gas properties is calculated using the
units of production method, based on total proved developed reserves. A successful efforts ceiling impairment
loss of $7,548,515 was recognized in 2017 due to the decline in gas pricing. Given the volatility of gas prices,
it is reasonably possible that Southeast Gas’ estimate of future net cash flows from proved gas reserves
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could change. No impairment loss was recognized in 2016. If prices decline significantly, it is possible that
additional impairments of gas properties could occur.
Maintenance — Southeast Gas charges maintenance and repairs to maintenance expense accounts or
applicable overhead accounts for allocation to expense accounts. Replacements of property are charged to the
gas utility plant accounts.
Construction Work in Progress — Construction work in progress represents costs related to various projects
in process. This amount primarily relates to station and line replacements, distribution and service line
installations, and purchases of heavy equipment, vehicles, computers and software as well as the construction
of a new building.
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less and various money market mutual funds.
Investments — Investments consist primarily of certificates of deposit. The investments are carried at
amortized cost, which approximates market value at September 30, 2017 and 2016.
Customer Accounts Receivable — Southeast Gas extends credit to residential, commercial and industrial
customers located primarily in southeast Alabama. An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained at a
level consistent with management’s analysis of past due accounts on a monthly basis. Current earnings are
charged (credited) with an increase (decrease) in the allowance account.
Other Accounts Receivable — Southeast Gas classifies certain amounts that do not represent customer
receivables as other accounts receivable in the accompanying statements of net position. This amount includes
receivables for gas sales to other municipalities for resale, transportation receivables, and interest receivable.
Receivables — Gas Properties — Revenue collections from gas properties are received approximately 30 to
60 days after they are billed. Estimated revenues are recorded for those amounts not yet received.
Materials and Supplies and Gas in Storage — Materials and supplies include merchandise and appliances
and are valued at average cost. Gas in storage includes gas stored underground by Southeast Gas and is valued
on a weighted-average cost basis.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources — In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This represents a consumption of net position that applies
to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. In addition
to liabilities, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred outflows and inflows as reported in the statements of
net position consist of the fair value of derivative positions as well as changes in assumptions, differences in
actual and expected experience, and the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments.
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Environmental Costs — Southeast Gas records liabilities when environmental assessments indicate that
remediation efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. A current period expense is
recognized for the liability when the cleanup efforts do not benefit future periods, unless it results in the
creation of a new asset. Estimates of liabilities are based on currently available facts, existing technology,
and presently enacted laws and regulations taking into consideration the likely effects of inflation and other
societal and economic factors and include estimates of associated legal costs. These amounts also consider
industry norms in remediating contaminated sites, other companies’ cleanup experience, and data released
by the Environmental Protection Agency or other organizations. These estimates are subject to revision in
future periods based on actual costs or new circumstances and are included in the statements of net position
in current and noncurrent liabilities at their discounted amounts. Recoveries from insurance coverage or
government-sponsored programs are evaluated separately from the liability and, when recovery is assured,
are recorded and reported as an asset separately from the associated liability in the financial statements. No
environmental liabilities have been recorded as of September 30, 2017 and 2016.
Revenue Recognition — Distribution revenues are derived primarily from the sale and transportation of natural
gas. Southeast Gas records these revenues when the gas is delivered to and received by the customer. Revenues
from nonutility services, including gas storage, are recognized upon delivery of the service to customers.
Gas property revenues are derived principally through physical sales of natural gas. Revenues from natural
gas sales are recorded upon the passage of title, including any royalty interests or other profit interests in the
produced product. Costs associated with the transportation and delivery of production is included in gas
properties operating expenses.
As discussed in Note 1 under “Related Entities”, Southeast Gas has an equal ownership interest in MGMS for
the purpose of acquiring, transporting, and marketing the sale of retail gas primarily from the Black Warrior
Basin area. Volumes produced from the wells and sold to MGMS are recorded as gas properties revenue, net of
hedging transactions, by Southeast Gas. When Southeast Gas sells those volumes to customers, the proceeds
are recorded as distribution revenues. Gross distribution revenues and gas properties revenues, net of hedging
transactions, for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, are shown below along with the elimination to
remove the effect of reporting such transactions twice.
Classification of Revenues — Operating revenues consist primarily of distribution and gas properties
revenues. Nonoperating revenues include the sale and installation of those derived from capital and related
financing, noncapital financing and investing activities such as investment earnings.
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September 30,
Distribution revenues
Gas properties revenues — net of hedging transactions
Corporate eliminations
Operating revenues

2017
$ 62,975,244
$
8,569,795 		
(8,341,330 )		
$ 63,203,709
$

2016
53,086,890
9,495,886
(6,160,988 )
56,421,788

Purchased Gas — Southeast Gas has firm transportation contracts with two interstate natural gas pipelines.
One guarantees daily deliveries of approximately 26,000 Mmbtu and the other guarantees daily deliveries of
18,000 Mmbtu for the month of October and 22,000 Mmbtu for the months of November through March.
Southeast Gas entered into a 10-year supply agreement with Tennergy Corporation for the delivery of up to
2,500 Mmbtu per day beginning June 1, 2006. The price paid for this gas is variable based on the first of the
month index, but may be fixed at any time through the use of commodity swaps or other hedging devices.
This contract ended in May of 2016.
Southeast Gas entered into an agreement with Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation for the supply of
3,500 Mmbtu per day also at an index based price. This agreement began August 1, 2006, and will expire July
31, 2026.
Southeast Gas entered into a 15-year supply agreement with Main Street Natural Gas, Inc., for the delivery of
5,000 Mmbtu per day for the winter months, November through March of each year, beginning November
2007. The price paid for this gas is variable based on the first of the month index. This agreement began
February 1, 2007, and will expire January 31, 2022.
Southeast Gas entered into a 30-year supply agreement with The Blackbelt Energy Gas District for the supply
of 500 to 700 Mmbtu at an index based price. This agreement began July 1, 2016 and will expire May 31, 2046.
Southeast Gas entered into a 30-year supply agreement with The Blackbelt Energy Gas District for the supply
of 400 to 700 Mmbtu at an index based price. This agreement began July 1, 2017 and will expire June 30, 2047.
Southeast Gas entered into 30-year supply agreement with Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation for
the supply of 1,900 to 3,600 Mmbtu at an index based price. This agreement will begin April 1, 2018 and will
expire March 31, 2048.
Income Taxes — Southeast Gas is a municipally owned corporation and, therefore, is exempt from federal and
state income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for such taxes is made in the accompanying financial statements.
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Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — Southeast Gas continually evaluates whether events
and circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining balance of its long-lived assets may be impaired
and not be recoverable. In performing this evaluation, Southeast Gas uses an estimate of the related cash flows
expected to result from the use of asset groups and their eventual disposition. When this evaluation indicates
the asset has been impaired, Southeast Gas will measure such impairment based on the asset’s fair value. Based
upon market values at September 30, 2017, Southeast Gas recognized an impairment loss of $7,548,515 on the
gas properties.
Statements of Cash Flows — For purposes of the statements of cash flows, Southeast Gas considers cash on
hand and in banks and short term investments that have an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash and cash equivalents.
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 is
as follows:

September 30,
Noncash transactions — declaration of distributions to member municipalities

2017

2016

$ 2,538,673

$ 3,518,369

Accounting for Derivative Investments and Hedging Activities — Southeast Gas follows GASB Statement
No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. This statement requires all derivatives
to be recognized on the statements of net position and measured at fair value.
Forward commodity swap contracts with various counterparties are used to convert certain long term gas
purchase/sales contracts from floating prices to fixed prices. The prices embedded in these commodity
hedge contracts are incorporated in Southeast Gas’ rate changes, thereby limiting customers’ exposure to
market volatility. The estimated fair value gains and losses from commodity hedge contracts are recorded as a
derivative asset or liability with a corresponding amount recorded as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability.
The actual gains and losses realized at settlement of the hedge contract are used to offset the actual purchase
cost from Southeast Gas’ physical supply contracts.
If a derivative instrument is terminated early because it is probable that a transaction or forecasted transaction
will not occur, any gain or loss as of such date is immediately recognized in earnings. If such derivative is
terminated early for other economic reasons, any gain or loss as of the termination date is deferred and
recorded when the associated or forecasted transaction affects earnings.
Net realized gains and (losses) for hedging transactions for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016
were approximately $(176,916) and $583,000, respectively. These gains or losses are reflected as either an
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increase or decrease in natural gas purchases or an increase or a reduction of gas properties revenue in the
accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Southeast Gas expects to
recognize approximately $97,814 of net gains into earnings in the next 12-month period.
All hedge transactions are subject to Southeast Gas’ risk management policy, approved by the Board of
Directors, which does not permit speculative positions. The maximum term over which Southeast Gas is
hedging exposures to the variability of cash flows on gas purchased for normal distribution sales is through
September 2022.
Asset Retirement Obligations — In June 2001, the FASB issued FASB ASC 410, Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obligations (formerly FASB Statement No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations),
which became effective for Southeast Gas beginning October 1, 2002. This statement requires that legal
obligations arising from retiring assets in the future be recognized in periods in which they are incurred.
The adoption of this statement on October 1, 2002, had no impact on Southeast Gas’ financial statements.
However, in connection with its purchase of working interests in gas properties in December 2002, Southeast
Gas assumed certain asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) (see Note 14).
Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards — November 2016, GASB issued Statement 83, Certain
Asset Retirement Obligations. Statement No. 83 addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset
retirement obligations (AROs). This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of
recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement requires
that recognition occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Management is determining the
impact on Southeast Gas’ financial statements.
In March of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective of this Statement is to address
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.
This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill,
fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment
benefits [OPEB]). The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. This
statement did not have a material impact on Southeast Gas’ financial statements.
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting, but not funding or budgetary
standards, for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers through OPEB
Plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements meeting certain criteria. This statement
also establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and expense/expenditure. It replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No.
57, OPEB Measurement by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. For defined benefit OPEB
plans the statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit
payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present
value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information are addressed.
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This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. Management is determining the
impact on Southeast Gas’ financial statements.
In May of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. This Statement improves
consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance
for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources—resources other
than the proceeds of refunding debt—are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing
debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is
extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. This statement did not have a
material impact on Southeast Gas’ financial statements.
In June of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases
by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings
of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’
leasing activities. The effective date of this statement are for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019. Management is determining the impact on Southeast Gas’ financial statements.
Subsequent Events — Southeast Gas has considered all other subsequent events for recognition or disclosure
through January 26, 2018, the date the financial statements were available for issuance.
Southeast Gas entered into a supply agreement contract with Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation that
will begin April 1, 2018.
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NOTE 2 – GAS UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
Southeast Gas’ utility plant in service at September 30, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

October 1,			
September 30,

2016
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
$
GAS UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE:
Land		
Transmission plant		
Distribution plant		
Production plant		
Buildings		
Equipment and other		
		
Accumulated depreciation		
Gas utility plant in service — net
$

1,985,718		

Additions

Reductions

$

4,241,518		 $

773,236 			
45,179,681 			
78,770,829 			
12,529 		
8,817,012 			
12,395,420 			
145,948,707			
(70,752,753 )		
77,181,672			 $

22,110
-			
2,371,321 			
-			
616,580
1,176,806 			
4,186,817
(4,115,673 )		
4,312,662		 $

4,172,445 		

2017
$

2,054,791

-

		
795,346
8,873			 45,170,808
91,929 		 81,050,221
-			
12,529
6,610
9,426,982
141,961 		 13,430,265
249,373 		 149,886,151
(410,765 )		 (74,457,661 )
4,011,053		 $ 77,483,281

October 1,			
September 30,

2015
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
$
GAS UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE:
Land		
Transmission plant		
Distribution plant		
Production plant		
Buildings		
Equipment and other		
		
Accumulated depreciation		
Gas utility plant in service - net
$
30

6,572,634		

Additions
$

Reductions

5,776,022		 $ 10,362,938 		 $

465,144 			
308,092			
45,043,247 			
136,434 			
73,356,780
9,234,250
12,529			
-			
8,779,218 			
37,794 			
12,265,975			
646,368 			
139,922,893 			 10,362,938 			
(71,316,325 )		 (3,878,345 )		
75,179,202 			 $ 12,260,615		 $

2016
1,985,718

-			
773,236
- 			 45,179,681
3,820,201
78,770,829
-			
12,529
-			
8,817,012
516,923 			 12,395,420
4,337,124 		 145,948,707
(4,441,917 )		 (70,752,753 )
10,258,145		 $ 77,181,672
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NOTE 3 - FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Southeast Gas’ bonds payable and line of credit and the related changes in those obligations were as follows as
of and for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016:

September 30,
2017

Beginning			
Balance
Borrowings
Payments

Series 2006A Bonds
Series 2015A Bonds
Series 2015B Bonds
Series 2015C Bonds
Series 2017 Bonds
Unamortized premium on
Series 2006A Bonds

$ 15,755,000
10,050,000
5,805,000
2,610,000
-

Line of credit (expires
April 2019)

$

340,670

- $
- 		
14,565,000
-

$ 34,560,670		$ 14,565,000
		
$
500,000		 $
-

Ending
Balance

Due Within 		
One Year

15,755,000		 $
- $
425,000		 9,625,000		
290,000		 5,515,000
520,000
2,090,000		
1,313,750 		 13,251,250		
340,670		

$

18,644,420

$

500,000

-

1,086,250
241,250
422,500
1,503,750
-

$ 30,481,250

$

3,253,750

$

$

-

-

September 30,
2016

Beginning			
Ending
Due Within 		
Balance
Borrowings
Payments
Balance
One Year
		
Series 2006A Bonds
$ 17,890,000 $
- $
2,135,000 $ 15,755,000 $ 2,240,000
Series 2015A Bonds		 10,205,000
-		
155,000		 10,050,000		
155,000
Series 2015B Bonds		 6,030,000
-		
225,000		 5,805,000		
230,000
Series 2015C Bonds		
3,015,000
-		
405,000		
2,610,000		
415,000
Unamortized Premium on
Series 2006A Bonds		
373,638
-		
32,968		
340,670		
$ 37,513,638 $
- $		
2,952,968 $ 34,560,670 $ 3,040,000
Line of credit (expires
April 2019)

		
$

-

$

500,000

$

-

$

500,000

$

-
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Series 2006A Bonds — In January 2007, Southeast Gas issued $43,255,000 of Series 2006A General System
Revenue Bonds (“Series 2006A Bonds”), the purpose of which was to reacquire and defease the $26,690,000 of
Series 2000A General System Revenue Bonds (“Series 2000A Bonds”) outstanding and to refinance the costs
of acquiring, constructing, and installing capital improvements to the system. In July 2015, $9,620,000 of these
bonds was refunded by the Series 2015A General System Revenue Bonds leaving the Series 2006A Bonds with
a long term balance of $13,515,000 at September 30, 2016. In January 2017, the remaining 2006A bonds were
refunded by the issuance of the 2017 Series Bonds.
Series 2015A Bonds — In July 2015, Southeast Gas issued $10,205,000 of Series 2015A General System
Revenue Bonds (“Series 2015A Bonds”), the purpose of which was to reacquire and defease $9,620,000 of the
Series 2006A Bonds and to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, and installing capital improvements
to the system. These bonds have a long term balance of $8,538,750 at September 30, 2017. The 2015A Bonds
bear interest at a rate of 2.38% and mature at various dates ranging from 2018 through 2026.
Series 2015B Bonds — In July 2015, Southeast Gas issued $6,030,000 of Series 2015B General System
Revenue Bonds (“Series 2015B Bonds”), to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, and installing capital
improvements to the system. These bonds have a long term balance of $5,273,750 at September 30, 2017. The
2015B Bonds bear interest at a rate of 2.96% and mature at various dates ranging from 2018 through 2035.
Series 2015C Bonds — In July 2015, Southeast Gas issued $3,015,000 of Series 2015C General System Revenue
Bonds (“Series 2015C Bonds”), to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, and installing certain capital
improvements to the system. These bonds have a long term balance of $1,667,500 at September 30, 2017. The
2015C Bonds bear interest at a rate of 1.99% and mature at various dates ranging from 2018 through 2022.
Series 2017 Bonds — In January 2017, Southeast Gas issued $14,565,000 of Series 2017 General System
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds (“Series 2017 Bonds”), to refund the Series 2006A Bonds. These
bonds have a long term balance of $11,747,500 at September 30, 2017. The 2017 Bonds bear interest at a rate
of 2.3% and mature at various dates ranging from 2018 through 2026.
Bond Reacquisitions and Refunding — The reacquisition of the Series 2000A Bonds resulted in a loss of
$2,665,187, which is being amortized to interest expense over the original life of the Series 2000A Bond
issuance. As of September 30, 2017, the unamortized loss on reacquired debt totaled $1,114,533.
The reacquisition of a portion of the Series 2006A Bonds resulted in a loss of $752,388, which is being
amortized to interest expense over the original life of the Series 2006A Bond issuance. As of September 30,
2017, the unamortized loss on reacquired debt totaled $597,315.
The refunding of the Series 2006A Bonds resulted in a loss of $101,973, which is being amortized to interest
expense over the original life of the Series 2006A Bond issuance. As of September 30, 2017, the unamortized
loss on refunded debt totaled $93,924.
Line of Credit — Southeast Gas has an unsecured line of credit agreement for an amount up to $10,000,000.
This agreement was renewed April 2016 and expires April 2019. Interest payments are due monthly based on
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the outstanding principal amount at a variable rate based upon the 30-day London InterBank Offered Rate
(LIBOR). There was $0 and $500,000 outstanding at September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The purpose
of the line of credit is to provide funds for general corporate purposes.
Debt Service — The debt service requirements for bonds payable outstanding at September 30, 2017 are
as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30,

Series 2017 Bonds
Principal
Interest

Series 2015A, B and C Bonds
Principal
Interest

2018
$
1,503,750
$
292,972
$
1,750,000 $
420,734
2019		 1,537,500		
257,533		 1,792,500		
378,313
2020		 1,568,750		
221,966		 1,840,000		
335,678
2021		1,603,750		 184,398		1,880,000		 290,157
2022		 1,640,000		
146,621		 1,805,000		
244,770
2023–2027		 5,397,500		 209,932		 5,402,500		
687,516
2028–2032		
-		
-		
1,712,500		
291,206
2033–2036		
-		
-		
1,047,500		
44,984		
				
Totals
$ 13,251,250
$
1,313,422
$
17,230,000 $
2,693,358		
				
As provided for by the master trust indenture and subsequent supplemental indentures, Southeast Gas has
established the following funds:

Series 2017
Bonds

As of September 30, 2017
Bond sinking funds
Debt service interest fund

$
$

As of September 30, 2016

Bond sinking funds
Debt service interest fund

Series 2015 		
Bonds

124,624
$
25,407 		
150,031
$
Series 2015
Bonds

145,047
36,172
181,219

Series 2006 		
Bonds

$

266,858
$
157,014		

747,330
227,327

$

423,872

974,657

$
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NOTE 4 - FACILITIES AGREEMENT FOR GANTT PIPELINE
In 2000, Southeast Gas and PowerSouth entered into a facilities agreement relating to the Gantt Pipeline. The
terms of the facilities agreement include sharing the total costs of construction, the total available capacity
(approximately 254,000 Mmbtu per day), and the total costs of operation by allocating 83% of such costs to
PowerSouth and 17% of such costs to Southeast Gas, subject to certain adjustments contained in the facilities
agreement. A portion of the capacity (83%) will be provided by Southeast Gas to PowerSouth in order to
provide transportation of gas supplies to PowerSouth for electric generation at PowerSouth’s combined cycle
facility located in Gantt, Alabama. The remainder of such capacity (17%) will be retained by Southeast Gas to
service its general system transportation needs.
Based upon the terms of the facilities agreement, Southeast Gas is essentially serving as a flow through entity
for PowerSouth’s portion (83%) of the Gantt Pipeline. Southeast Gas operates the Gantt Pipeline. Upon
completion of the Gantt Pipeline, Southeast Gas accounted for the facilities agreement as a direct financing
lease and transferred plant in service costs to a lease receivable due from PowerSouth for its 83% portion of the
Gantt Pipeline. Construction of the Gantt Pipeline was completed in 2001, and the total cost was transferred
to receivables associated with Lateral Project Bonds in the accompanying statements of net position; the lease
receivable was paid in full in April 2010.

NOTE 5 - ACQUISITION OF GAS PROPERTIES
On December 19, 2002, and effective January 1, 2003, MGAG purchased working and royalty interests in
producing gas properties located in the coalbed methane fields in the Black Warrior Basin area near Tuscaloosa,
Alabama. Operation of the wells included in the acquisition was subject to numerous existing agreements that
remain in effect for the life of the field. As part of the acquisition, Southeast Gas and MGAG formed MGMS
and entered into a production sharing agreement, whereby MGAG agreed to sell 50% of all gas produced
for the life of the properties in return for Southeast Gas’ agreement to pay 50% of all costs related to the gas
properties. In May 2003, Southeast Gas exercised an option to purchase 50% of the gas wells from MGAG and
financed the purchase through the issuance of the Series 2003A Taxable Bonds.
In connection with its purchase of gas production interests, Southeast Gas assumed responsibility for a portion
of the obligations that will be incurred to cap and abandon the gas wells upon their retirement. The estimated
present value of these obligations has been recorded as an ARO; with a corresponding charge to gas properties
in the accompanying statements of net position (see Note 14 for further information). Southeast Gas uses the
proportional consolidation method to record all MGMS transactions.
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The results of operations for the gas properties for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 are
summarized below:

September 30,

2017

2016

Revenues
$
Operating expenses
Depletion 		
Impairment loss		
Total expenses		

8,569,795		 $
6,383,752			
3,164,514			
7,548,515			
17,096,781			

9,495,886
6,604,629
5,987,335
12,591,964

Recognition of unearned revenue from gas properties
Net revenues

628,656			
(7,898,330 ) $

628,656
(2,467,422 )

$

NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Defined Benefit Pension Plan — In 2014, Southeast Gas implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions. Southeast Gas’ statements of net position are presented in accordance
with that standard. At September 30, 2017 and 2016, Southeast Gas had recorded a net pension liability
of $6,492,168 and $8,111,644, respectively. These amounts are included in the non-current portion of the
regulatory liability reported in the statement of net position. Pension expense amounted to approximately
$1.4 million in 2017 and $1.6 million in 2016.
Defined Benefit Plan Description — Southeast Gas has a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
(the “Southeast Alabama Gas District Pension Plan” or the “Plan”). The Plan is governed by Southeast Gas,
which may amend Plan provisions and which is responsible for the management of Plan assets. Southeast Gas
retained a third-party administrator to administer the Plan assets.
Benefits Provided — The Plan provides retirement and death benefits covering substantially all common
law employees hired prior to January 1, 2011 who are age 21 or older and have completed one year of service.
Retirement benefits under the Plan are based on the average of the participant’s highest five consecutive
years of compensation out of the last 10 years of employment. Covered employees may retire at age 63 with
full benefits. Early retirement is available at age 55 with reduced benefits. A death benefit equal to 50%
of the participant’s vested accrued benefit determined under the 50% joint and survivor option is payable
to a surviving spouse. Employees who complete five years of vesting service and terminate employment
before becoming eligible for retirement benefits are eligible for a termination benefit equal to his accrued

35

southeast gas
Annual report

benefit as of the date of termination. This termination benefit is payable beginning on the participant’s normal
retirement date.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — At September 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms:

Inactive employees currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

101
59
127

Funding Policy — Southeast Gas’ funding policy is consistent with the requirements of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, and Southeast Gas provides all contributions to the Plan based on
an actuarially determined rate recommended by an independent actuary. Required and actual contribution
information was as follows:

Years ended September 30,

Actuarially determined required contribution
Actual contributions paid to the Plan

2017

$

1,691,915
1,691,918

2016

$

1,516,014
1,646,448

Net Pension Liability — The Plan’s net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2017, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by updating to the measurement
date amounts determined from an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2016.
The update was made using generally accepted actuarial principles and practices. No significant changes in
the plan or those covered by the plan occurred between the actuarial valuation and measurement dates.
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Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the October 1, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Inflation
Asset valuation method
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Retirement age
Mortality
Marital assumptions

Entry age normal
Level dollar payments
2.50 %
Market value as of September 30, 2017
4.50 %
7.25 %
Age 63 or age at valuation date if later
The RP-2014 Mortality Table, separate for annuitants and
non-annuitants, projected by Scale MP-2016
75% of the participants are assumed to be married.

Actuarial assumptions are selected in conformance with Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 27 Selection of
Economic Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations and No. 35 Selection of Demographic and Other
Noneconomic Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined following discussions
between the employer and the Plan’s investment counsel regarding the fund’s investment portfolio and
expected future returns thereon.
The allocation of the Plan’s portfolio by class of investment was as follows:

Asset Class

Equity investments
Fixed income investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Real estate
Other

Allocation
Percentage
52.00
25.00
13.00
5.00
5.00

%
%
%
%
%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on this assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
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employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Changes in Net Pension Liability — The changes in the net pension liability are summarized as follows:

Total Pension
Liability

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

Net Pension
Liability

Balances at September 30, 2016
$
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions		
Differences between projected and actual earnings
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Remeasurements
Administrative expenses

36,367,636		 $
630,808 			
2,646,584 			
245,538			
(472,307 )			
- 			
- 			
- 			
(1,570,943 )			
- 			
- 			

28,255,992		 $
- 		
- 		
-			
-			
928,457 		
1,691,918 		
2,055,516 		
(1,570,943 )		
-			
(5,792 )

Balances at September 30, 2017

37,847,316

31,355,148

$

$

8,111,644
630,808
2,646,584
245,538
(472,307 )
(928,457 )
(1,691,918 )
(2,055,516 )
5,792

$

6,492,168

The following table presents Southeast Gas’ net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as
well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point higher (8.25%) or one percentage point lower (6.25%) than the current rate as of September 30, 2017:

			
Net pension liability

1% Decrease
(6.25%)
$

11,073,191

Current Rate
(7.25%)
$

6,492,168

1% Increase
(8.25%)
$

2,629,093

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions — Southeast Gas
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions of the following
sources:
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Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

September 30, 2017
		

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience
$
390,633
$
913,180
Changes in assumptions and other inputs		
1,487,576		
419,233
Projected vs. actual investment earnings		
791,050		
1,165,961
		
$
2,669,259
$
2,498,374
September 30, 2016

Differences between expected and actual experience
$
195,716
$
1,032,488
Changes in assumptions and other inputs		
1,682,443		
Projected vs. actual investment earnings		
1,186,174		
554,439
		
$
3,064,333
$
1,586,927
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources as of September 30,
2017 will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Deferred

Deferred

Balances at September 30,
Outflows
Inflows
Net
		
		
2018
$
640,611
$
(498,525 ) $
142,086
2019		
640,610			
(498,525 )
142,085
2020		
246,290
(498,524 )
(252,234 )
2021		
245,487
(359,915 )
(114,428 )
2022		
245,487
(172,382 )
73,105
2023 and after		
650,774
(470,503 )
180,271
Total

$

2,669,259		

$

(2,498,374 )

$

170,885

The actuarial valuation was prepared as of the current valuation date. Deferred outflow and inflows related
to differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions will be recognized in
pension expense, beginning in the current reporting period, over a closed period equal to the average of
the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension
plan (active and inactive employees), determined as of the beginning of the measurement period. Differences
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between projected and actual earnings on plan investments is amortized into pension expense over a closed
five-year period.
NOTE 7 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
The Southeast Alabama Gas District Defined Contribution Retirement Program (the “Program”) is sponsored
by Southeast Gas. The Program is a Section 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan, which provides for employer
contributions. All full-time employees hired after January 1, 2011, who are 18 years of age older, are in the
Program. Southeast Gas contributes 5% of the participant’s compensation to the plan, after completing
one year of service. Participants fully vest in the employer matching contributions after five years of
service. Although it has not expressed any intent to do so, Southeast Gas may amend the plan at the Board’s
discretion. Employer contributions are made annually at the end of the plan year. As of September 30, 2017
and 2016, Southeast Gas had recorded a liability of $105,466 and $82,767, respectively, which comprised
the contributions for those plan years. These amounts are included in the current portion of the regulatory
liability reported in the statement of net position.
NOTE 8 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
Southeast Gas has a deferred compensation which qualifies as a defined contribution plan pursuant to Section
457 of the Internal Revenue Code, which allows plan participants to defer and contribute to the plan, through
Southeast Gas, a specified portion of the participants’ compensation subject to IRS limits. Southeast Gas
matches the participants’ contributions up to 5% of the participants’ compensation. Participants are fully
vested upon entering the plan. The plan is administered by a third party administrator. Although it has not
expressed any intent to do so, Southeast Gas may amend the plan at Board’s discretion. Southeast Gas has
no discretionary authority or control over any assets of the plan, which are the property of the participants.
Southeast Gas’ contributions to this plan totaled $227,706 in 2017 and $218,896 in 2016.
NOTE 9 - POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
The Southeast Alabama Gas District Premium Supplement Plan is a defined contribution benefit plan that
provides eligible retirees a premium supplement to assist with the cost of retiree health insurance until the
retiree reaches age 65 or seven years from the date of retirement, whichever occurs first. Southeast Gas pays
a supplement of $75 per month for single coverage and $200 per month for family coverage for each eligible
participating retiree. The retiree is responsible for the cost of health insurance premiums in excess of the
supplement. The Plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Plan is governed by Southeast Gas, which may
amend Plan provisions and which is responsible for the management of the Plan.
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Other postretirement benefits expense and the amount of contributions made for the years ended September
30, 2017 and 2016, included the following components:

September 30,

2017

Service cost
$
Interest cost		
Amortization of unrecognized gain		
Net other postretirement benefit expense
$
Employer contributions

$

2016

21,000
$
20,000		
-		
41,000
$
2,750

$

21,000
20,000
41,000
1,125

The status of Southeast Gas’ unfunded other postretirement benefit obligation at September 30, 2017 and
2016, is as follows:

September 30,
Accrued benefit cost recognized in the statement of net position

2017
$

613,647

2016
$

575,397

The weighted-average rates assumed in the actuarial calculation for September 30, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

September 30,

2017

2016

Discount rate
Health care cost trend rate

3.50 %
N/A 		

3.50 %
N/A

The estimated benefits paid were $2,750 and $1,125 for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
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Southeast Gas’ annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation is as follows:

		

		
Annual OPEB
Annual OPEB
Cost
Net OPEB
September 30,
Cost
Contributed
Obligation
2015
2016
2017

$
$
$

34,505
41,000
41,000

5.22 %
2.74 %
6.70 %

$
$
$

535,522
575,397
613,647

The postretirement benefits expense and the unfunded other postretirement benefit obligation amounts are
based on an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2015. The significant actuarial assumptions used in that
actuarial valuation are as follows:
Mortality
Discount rate for benefit obligations
Premium trend rate
Turnover
Assumed retirement age
Salary scale
Disability
Claims cost
Participant contributions

42

The RP-2000 Mortality Table, projected with Scale AA to 2022
for current retirees and 2030 for current employees
3.50% per year
None assumed
2003 SOA Small Plan Age Table multipled by .45
Age 63 or age on valuation date, whichever is later
N/A
None assumed
Southeast Gas provides a premium supplement to retirees for
medical coverage until age 65
None
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NOTE 10 - DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS, AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
At September 30, 2017, Southeast Gas’ deposit and investment balances (as defined by GASB Statement No.
40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3) were as follows:

		
Percent
Investment Type

Fair Value

To Total

Cash and cash equivalents:					
Cash
$
14,269,365
62 %
Money market funds		
1,057,234
5 %
Total cash and cash equivalents		
15,326,599
67 %
Investments:					
Certificates of deposit		
6,184,777
27 %
Capital project funds		
1,075,520
5 %
Bond debt service funds		
Total cash and investments

$

331,250
22,918,146

1 %
100

Maturities

Rating

Current
Current

N/A
N/A

Oct 2017 - Sep 2019
Current

N/A
N/A

Current

N/A

%		

Interest Rate Risk — Southeast Gas’ investment philosophy is to stagger certificate of deposit maturities
monthly over a one to three-year period. Southeast Gas has no term policy on purchased governmental
securities.
Credit Risk — Southeast Gas’ policy regarding credit risk on investments is governed by indenture
requirements, which require investments in agencies of the federal government and state and local
governments with a rating from one of the rating agencies in one of the two highest rating categories.
Southeast Gas is also allowed to acquire certificates of deposits in amounts which are not to exceed Federal
Depository Insurance Coverage (“FDIC”). Certificates of deposit which exceed FDIC limits must be
collateralized by the local banking institutions.
Concentration of Credit Risk — Southeast Gas places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any
one issuer. Southeast Gas requires residential and commercial customers to maintain a deposit based on the
type of service provided and the customer’s credit history. These customer deposits are held by Southeast Gas
in either certificates of deposit with varying maturity dates or money market accounts. Industrial customers
typically maintain surety bonds or letters of credit and also have certain minimum monthly bills based on
each individual contract.
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Southeast Gas has two primary sources of revenue, distribution revenues and gas property revenues. Southeast
Gas had two customers that accounted for 21% and 19% of Southeast Gas’ total distribution revenues during
the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. In addition, distribution revenues include
transportation revenues to a transportation customer that accounted for 39% and 48% of total throughput for
the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The transportation revenues totaled $948,644 for
the year ended September 30, 2017, and $1,025,791 for the year ended September 30, 2016. In management’s
opinion, Southeast Gas has in place adequate cash deposits and prepayments from customers, as well as
reserves related to customer accounts receivable to mitigate the risk of material loss.
NOTE 11 - DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
Southeast Gas entered into futures contracts for approximately 66% of expected volumes to be produced
through 2018 from the gas properties. These swaps and options effectively fix a price or a minimum price
to be received from sales of natural gas related to these properties ranging from $2.463 per Mmbtu to
$3.630 per Mmbtu. These agreements cover a total volume, declining annually through 2018, of 1,680,000
Mmbtu. Southeast Gas intends to hold these agreements to maturity. Southeast Gas is exposed to market gas
price risk in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty; however, Southeast Gas does not anticipate
nonperformance. In the normal course of acquiring gas for distribution customers, Southeast Gas also entered
into futures contracts and swap agreements. In connection with entering into such agreements, Southeast Gas
has obtained a $3 million letter of credit from its largest customer. The combined fair market value of these
positions was a loss of $24,331 and a gain of $70,352 at September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These
amounts have been recorded as a liability or asset under fair value of derivatives and as a regulatory liability
or asset in the accompanying statements of net position.
NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT
Southeast Gas is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions, injuries to employees and others; and natural disasters. Southeast Gas carries commercial
insurance, subject to certain limits and deductibles, to reduce the financial impact of claims arising from
such matters.
NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation — Southeast Gas is subject to certain claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of these
matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of
Southeast Gas.
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On January 18, 2017, a suit was filed against Southeast Gas and one of its employees in connection with an
explosion in Headland, Alabama. Southeast Gas has conducted an internal investigation and has determined
that natural gas was not the cause of the accident. The lawsuit is ongoing and an outcome cannot be determined
at this time. However, management feels that liability resulting from an unfavorable verdict, if any, would not
exceed commercial insurance coverage.
Capital Budget — Southeast Gas’ capital expenditures are currently estimated to total $3.55 million in 2018,
$2.5 million in 2019, and $2.5 million in 2020. The capital budget is subject to periodic review and revision,
and actual capital costs incurred may vary from estimates because of changes in such factors as business
conditions; environmental regulations; load projections; the cost and efficiency of construction labor,
equipment, and materials; and the cost of capital.
Gas Supply Agreements — On November 16, 2004, Southeast Gas was among the original seven public
gas and electric utilities that signed an agreement to form a gas supply agency called Public Gas Partners,
Inc. (PGP). PGP was created to secure economical, long term wholesale natural gas supplies for its member
agencies to stabilize and reduce the cost of natural gas for the mutual benefit of all their customers. The
partnership was motivated by the common need for a long term, secure stream of economical natural
gas supplies.
As a PGP member, Southeast Gas has entered into three Natural Gas Production Sharing Agreements (PSA)
with PGP. Each PSA obligates Southeast Gas to pay its share of all costs incurred by the related PGP pool. The
PSAs include a step-up provision that could obligate Southeast Gas to increase its participation up to 125% of
its original participation in the event of default of another member.
The members of Pool 1 are Southeast Gas, MGAG, Florida Municipal Power Agency, Patriots Energy Group,
and Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation. The acquisition period for Pool 1 closed effective November
2007. Under the Pool 1 PSA, Southeast Gas has an 18% participation share. As of June 2017, total Pool 1 interests
owned were estimated at approximately 47 Bcfe of natural gas. As of June 2017, production from such interests
was approximately 13,800 Mcfe per day. Southeast Gas’ share of that production is 2,500 Mcfe per day. The
acquisitions were financed through PGP. Southeast Gas’ share of the outstanding debt is approximately $24.4
million. Based on index gas prices as of September 30, 2017, minimum annual payments to PGP for these
committed volumes are estimated to be $3 million. The gas purchased under these arrangements is used in
serving Southeast Gas’ customers, and is included in “Natural Gas Purchases” in the accompanying statements
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Approximately 49% of Southeast Gas’ committed volumes
were committed on behalf of PowerSouth, Marshall County Gas District, Northwest Alabama Gas District,
Scottsboro Water, Sewer and Gas Board, and Cullman Jefferson Counties Gas District. These companies have
signed natural gas production agreements with Southeast Gas with the same terms and conditions as the
agreement between Southeast Gas and PGP.
Pool 2 is composed of five members, Southeast Gas, MGAG, Florida Municipal Power Agency, Patriots
Energy Group, and Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation. The acquisition period for Pool 2 expired in
June 2008. As of June 2017, total Pool 2 interests owned were estimated at approximately 10 Bcfe of natural

45

southeast gas
Annual report

gas. As of June 2017, production from such interests was approximately 2,700 Mcfe per day. Southeast Gas’ share
of that production is 135 Mcfe per day. The debt associated with these properties is approximately $51 million with
Southeast Gas’ share being approximately $2.6 million, financed by PGP. Southeast Gas’ share of the debt balance
of Pool 2 is 5%, with a maximum participation share of 6.3%. Based on index gas prices as of September 30, 2017,
minimum annual payments to PGP for these committed volumes are estimated to be $145,000. The gas purchased
under these arrangements is used in serving Southeast Gas’ customers, and is included in “Natural Gas Purchases” in
the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
Pool 3 is composed of four members, Southeast Gas, MGAG, Patriots Energy Group, and National Public Gas Agency.
As of June 2017, total Pool 3 interests owned were estimated at approximately 135 Bcfe of natural gas. As of June
2017, production from such interests was approximately 25,300 Mcfe per day. Southeast Gas’ share of that production
is approximately 2,500 Mcfe per day. The outstanding debt associated with these properties is $107 million with
Southeast Gas’ share being approximately $10.6 million, financed by PGP. Southeast Gas’ share of the costs associated
with Pool 3 is 10% with a maximum participation share of 13%. Based on index gas prices as of September 30, 2017,
minimum annual payments to PGP for these committed volumes are estimated to be $3 million. The gas purchased
under these arrangements is used in serving Southeast Gas’ customers, and is included in “Natural Gas Purchases” in
the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Approximately 17% of Southeast
Gas’ committed volumes were committed on behalf of Marshall County Gas District, and Northwest Alabama Gas
District. These companies have signed natural gas production agreements with Southeast Gas with the same terms
and conditions as the agreement between Southeast Gas and PGP.
Total expenses related to these gas supply arrangements with PGP were $6.6 million and $4.9 million for the years
ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and are included in “Natural Gas Purchases” in the accompanying
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
NOTE 14 - ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
Southeast Gas recorded a liability representing expected future costs associated with site reclamation, facilities
dismantlement, and plug and abandonment of gas wells for September 30, 2017 and 2016, as follows (see Note 4):

September 30,
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2017

2016

$
Balance of ARO — beginning of year
Accretion expense
Assets retired and abandoned		
Change in cash flow estimates

2,437,605
$
94,236
-		
-		

2,346,847
90,758
-

Balance of ARO — end of year

2,531,841

2,437,605

$

$
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Southeast Gas’ gas distribution system operates under various property easement agreements primarily related to
public rights-of-way. In some instances, the entity granting the easement retains the option to require certain actions
in the event Southeast Gas abandons the asset. Since Southeast Gas expects its gas distribution assets will be operated
in perpetuity and historical abandonment costs resulting from such easement agreements have been de minimis, no
ARO has been recorded for gas distribution assets.
NOTE 15 - DISTRIBUTIONS TO MEMBER MUNICIPALITIES
The Board of Directors declares each year distributions to be paid in November to the member municipalities. The
amounts declared for fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, were $2,538,673 and $3,518,369 respectively.
Those amounts were reflected as Distributions to member municipalities in the accompanying statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position for the years then ended.
NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by Southeast Gas using market information
and appropriate valuation methodologies. The estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
Southeast Gas could realize in a current market exchange.
The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated
fair market value.
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued interest
payable are estimated to approximate fair value because of their short-term nature. The carrying amount of derivative
instruments equals fair value.
The carrying amount and fair value of the Series 2017 Bonds, Series 2015A Bonds, Series 2015B Bonds and Series
2015C bonds, based on interest rates that are currently available to Southeast Gas for issuance of debt with similar
terms and remaining maturities are as follows at September 30:

2017
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
Series 2017 Bonds
Series 2015A Bonds
Series 2015B Bonds
Series 2015C Bonds
Series 2006A Bonds

$
$
$
$
$

13,251,250
9,625,000
5,515,000
2,090,000
-

$
$
$
$
$

2016
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value

13,089,551 $
9,541,780 $ 10,050,000
5,752,216 $ 5,805,000
2,050,209 $ 2,610,000
- $ 15,755,000

$
$ 10,308,724
$ 6,390,252
$ 2,617,947
$ 17,557,731
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NOTE 17 - ESTIMATED GAS RESERVES (UNAUDITED)
During fiscal year 2003, Southeast Gas purchased working and overriding royalty interests in natural gas properties in
the Black Warrior Basin near Tuscaloosa, Alabama. Estimated reserves based on an independent petroleum engineer’s
studies and subsequent deliveries to Southeast Gas for September 30, 2017 and 2016 are as follows (in Mmcf):

2017

2016

Proved producing and nonproducing reserves: 			
Balance — beginning of year
$
12,687		 $
Revisions of previous estimates 		
9,962			
Production		
(2,903 ) 		
Balance — end of year

$

°°°°°
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19,746		

$

19,872
(4,038 )
(3,147 )
12,687

Southeast Alabama Gas District
schedule of funding progress –
Southeast Alabama Gas District premium supplement plan
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Actuarial
Actuarial
Value of
Valuation
Assets
Date
(a)

Actuarial 				
Accrued 				
Liability
Unfunded
Funded
Covered
(AAL)
AAL (UAAL)
Ratio
Payroll
(b)
(b-a)
(a/b)
(c)

9/30/12
9/30/15

$
$

$
$

-

427,343		
535,522		

$
$

427,343		
535,522		

0.00 %
0.00 %

$
$

7,111,867
7,391,947

UAAL as a
% of
Covered
Payroll
((b-a)/c)
6.01 %
7.24 %

Only two years of valuation data were available as of September 30, 2017.
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September 30,

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY									
Service cost
$ 630,808		 $ 650,875		 $ 674,710		 $ 696,338						
Interest		 2,646,584			2,397,367			2,347,144			
2,209,542						
Differences between expected
and actual experience		 245,538		 (1,151,796		)		 241,772			
-						
Change of assumptions
(472,307 )		 1,636,311			 266,370 		
-						
Benefit payments		 (1,570,943 ) (1,406,486 )		(1,352,951) (1,243,338)						
		
Net change in total pension
liability
1,479,680			2,126,271			2,177,045			1,662,542						
		
Total pension liability - Beginning
36,367,636 34,241,365 32,064,320 30,401,778 26,840,209 24,704,328 23,369,698
Total pension liability - Ending
37,847,316 36,367,636 34,241,365 32,064,320 30,401,778 26,840,209 24,704,328

2010

22,381,184
23,369,698

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION							
Contributions - employer
1,691,918 1,646,448 1,750,002 2,200,003 1,445,454 1,400,004 1,900,005 1,900,004
Net investment income		 2,983,973 		2,550,832			 (126,019 )		 1,901,148			1,632,591			2,606,825			 61,776			 1,381,305
Benefit payments
(1,570,943 ) (1,406,486 ) (1,352,951 ) (1,243,338 ) (1,217,437 ) (1,200,170 ) (1,135,345 ) (1,030,328 )
Administrative expenses
(5,792 )
(19,015 ) (18,630 )
(16,638 ) (15,709 )
(8,169 )
(5,736 )
-			
		
Net change in Plan Fiduciary
3,099,156 2,771,779
252,402 2,841,175 1,844,899 2,798,490
820,700 2,250,981
		
Plan Fiduciary net position - Beginning
28,255,992 25,484,213 25,231,811 22,390,636 20,545,737 17,747,247 16,926,547 14,675,566
Plan Fiduciary net position - Ending
31,355,148 28,255,992 25,484,213 25,231,811 22,390,636 20,545,737 17,747,247 16,926,547
Net pension liability - Ending
$ 6,492,168 $ 8,111,644 $ 8,757,152 $ 6,832,509 $ 8,011,142 $ 6,294,472 $ 6,957,081 $ 6,443,151
Plan Fiduciary net position as
a percentage of total pension liability
82.85 %
77.70 %
74.43 %
78.69 %
73.65 %
76.55 %
71.84 %
72.43 %
COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL
Net pension liability as a
percentage of covered
employee payroll

$ 7,069,177 $ 7,343,670 $ 7,391,947 $ 7,769,122 $ 7,611,248 $ 7,111,867 $ 7,285,609 $ 6,911,058

91.84 %

110.46 %

118.47 %

87.94 %

* Only eight years of historical data was available for presentation at September 30, 2017.		
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105.25 %

88.51 %

95.49 %

93.23 %
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September 30,
Actuarially determined contribution

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

$ 1,691,915		 $ 1,516,014		 $1,701,455		 $ 1,790,160		 $ 1,449,984		 $1,370,652		 $ 1,344,123		 $ 602,715		

Contribution in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution		 1,691,918		1,646,448		1,750,002		 2,200,003		 1,445,454		 1,400,004		 1,900,005		1,900,004
Contribution deficiency (excess)		

(3 ) 		 (130,434 )		

(48,547) (409,843 )

4,530		 (29,352 )		 (555,882 ) (1,297,289 )

Covered employee payroll

7,069,177 7,343,670		 7,391,947		 7,769,122		 7,611,248		 7,111,867		 7,285,609		 6,911,058		

Contributions as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

23.93 %

22.42 %

23.67 %

28.32 %

18.99 %

19.69 %

26.08 %

27.49 %

List of Assumptions for Actuarially Determined Contribution		
Valuation date

Beginning of fiscal year (October 1)		

Actuarially determined contribution is calculated as of end of fiscal year		
Actuarial cost method

Aggregate		

Asset valuation method

4 year smoothed method		

Salary increases

4.50 %		

Investment rate of return

7.25 %		

Retirement age

Age 63 or age at valuation date if later		

Mortality

The RP-2014 Mortality Table, separate for
annuitants and non-annuitants, projected by Scale MP-2016

* Only eight years of historical data was available for presentation at September 30, 2017.
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Septemeber 30
For the years ended

2017

2016

2015

Distribution revenues
$
62,975,244		 $
53,086,890 $
Gas property revenues		
8,569,795			
9,495,886 		
Gas sales to supply project participants		
-			
-			
Corporate eliminations		
(8,341,330 )		
(6,160,988 )
Total operating revenues		
63,203,709			
56,421,788 			
Operating expenses
Natural gas purchases		
35,688,788			
25,359,373 		
Corporate eliminations		
(8,341,330 )		
(6,160,988 )		
Distribution expenses		
18,996,313			
17,877,174 		
Depreciation		
4,115,673			
3,878,347 		
Gas properties operating expenses		
6,383,752			
6,604,629 		
Depletion of gas properties		
10,713,029			
5,987,335 		
			
Total operating expenses		
67,556,225			
53,545,870 		
Gain on termination of 2007 Gas Supply Project

63,492,766		 $
13,684,128			
-			
(8,440,013 )		
68,736,881			

73,552,734		
16,687,583			
-			
(11,722,238 )		
78,518,079			

36,432,824			
(8,440,013 )		
19,006,352			
3,477,413			
7,765,311			
5,097,630 			

47,239,315			
(11,722,238 )		
17,723,098			
3,114,342			
8,179,299			
3,528,569			

63,339,517			

68,062,385			

-			

-			

-			

-			

Operating income		
Non-operating income (expense)
Interest expense		
Interest income		
Other, net		
Net non-operating income (expense)		

(4,352,516 )		

2,875,918 		

5,397,364			

10,455,694			

(978,085 )		
82,917			
(1,115,408 )		
(2,010,576 )		

(1,447,198 )
65,817 		
(1,454,798 )
(2,836,179 )

(1,400,922 )		
77,603			
(1,734,206 )		
(3,057,525 )		

(1,512,404 )		
15,716			
(1,283,687 )		
(2,780,375 )		

Deferred income from gas properties		

628,656			

628,656 		

628,656			

628,656			

Deferred billings-2007 Gas Supply Project		

-			

-			

-			

13,322			

Net position before distributions

$

(5,734,436 ) $

Distribution to member municipalities
$
Distribution Mmcf sales:
General service		
Commercial		
Industrial interruptible		
Public housing authorities		
Optional		
Gas sold for resale		
Gross distribution sales		
Transportation only		
Total Throughput (Mmcf)		

2,538,673		 $

Distribution revenues:
General service
$
Commercial		
Industrial interruptible		
Public housing authorities		
Optional		
Transportation and other		
Distribution revenues
$
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2014

Peak month number of customers		
Average distribution revenue per Mcf
(excluding transportation, excess gas and
other operating revenues)
$

2,968,495		 $

8,317,297		

$

4,836,856		 $

5,268,220		

576			
966			
7,961			
2			
64			
973			
10,542			
2,000			
12,542			

644 		
1,033			
6,332			
2 		
80 		
991 		
9,082 		
2,700			
11,782 		

775			
1,117			
6,507			
3			
74			
1,577			
10,053			
2,521			
12,574			

839			
1,134			
6,948			
3			
59			
1,318			
10,301			
2,671			
12,972			

10,733,086		 $
14,468,236			
32,768,277			
28,348			
757,617			
4,219,680			
62,975,244		 $

11,281,810 $
14,410,155 		
22,951,059 		
31,399			
993,128 		
3,419,339 		
53,086,890 $

12,329,568		$
14,758,223			
28,741,419			
34,311			
985,469			
6,643,776			
63,492,766		$

12,994,834		
14,709,256			
37,479,800			
43,994			
737,619			
7,587,231			
73,552,734		

29,188			

29,101 		

28,868			

29,316			

6.14		 $

668,395		 $
3,518,369

6.14

$

6.71		 $

7.34		

20
17
Annual report

(RESTATED )

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009		

$
			
			
		
			

64,893,095		 $
18,439,765			
-			
(9,879,375 )		
73,453,485			

62,745,585		 $
23,931,063			
12,147,234			
(14,731,384 )		
84,092,498			

77,007,682		 $
28,053,434			
55,327,238			
(11,276,475 )		
149,111,879			

79,907,167		 $
30,961,697			
53,419,823			
(12,349,650 )		
151,939,037			

80,870,791		
32,383,660				
52,642,108		
		
(12,948,900 )		
152,947,659 		

			
		
			
			
			
			

40,636,680			
(9,879,375 )		
19,692,799			
2,992,915			
8,540,020			
4,507,412			

56,170,198			
(14,731,384 )		
19,685,242			
2,632,326			
8,800,562			
6,012,761			

84,342,174			
(11,276,475 )		
18,688,631			
2,568,647			
8,158,263			
4,209,271			

84,716,715			
(12,349,650 )		
18,539,457			
2,502,765			
9,388,222			
4,587,351			

90,900,493		
		
(12,948,900 )
17,100,449 					
2,426,174 			
9,706,227 					
4,520,043 		 		

			

66,490,451			

78,569,705			

106,690,511			

107,384,860			

111,704,486 			

			

-			

100,979,389			

-			

-			

			

6,963,034			

106,502,182			

42,421,368			

44,554,177			

		
			
		
		

(2,467,548 )		
133,815			
(1,534,727 )		
(3,868,460 )		

(17,357,799 )		
9,844,529			
(1,465,706 )		
(8,978,976 )		

(38,777,026 )		
547,223			
(942,768 )		
(39,172,571 )		

(40,608,838 )		
2,107,160			
(554,064 )		
(39,055,742 )		

			

21,100,000				-			-		

-			

-				

41,243,173 		

		

(42,894,664 )
2,470,745 		
			
(373,702 )
(40,797,621 )			

			

683,059			

(86,708,934 )		

12,415,410			

13,448,186			

14,637,100				

$

24,877,633		 $

10,814,272		 $

15,664,207		 $

18,946,621		 $

15,082,652 					

$

4,030,032		 $

6,333,025		 $

6,226,379		 $

8,399,734		 $

			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			

749			
1,061			
6,704			
3			
63			
1,598			
10,178			
2,261			
12,439			

641			
993			
6,416			
6			
59			
2,357			
10,472			
2,087 		
12,559			

858			
1,172			
6,518			
7			
42			
3,026			
11,623			
1,874 		
13,497			

982			
1,243			
6,353			
8			
74			
2,472			
11,132			
1,810 		
12,942			

1,014 		
846 		
6,478 		
8		
67 		
1,738
10,151 			
1,002				
11,153			

$
			
			
			
			
			
$

11,254,320		 $
13,880,077			
31,810,449			
49,881			
702,318			
7,196,050			
64,893,095		 $

9,872,602		 $
13,096,628			
26,678,880			
90,581			
731,433			
12,275,461			
62,745,585		 $

12,386,299		 $
14,563,101			
35,050,334			
102,860			
540,620			
14,364,468			
77,007,682		 $

13,748,276		 $
15,102,501			
36,452,626			
119,321			
923,620 			
13,560,823			
79,907,167		 $

16,668,850			
11,513,467		
41,225,797
139,477		
1,196,745				
10,126,456		
80,870,792		

			

29,379			

29,591			

29,869			

29,917			

$

6.72		 $

6.22		 $

7.29		 $

7.66		 $

7,489,739

30,017
8.41		
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Secretary/Treasurer, Fort Deposit

Christopher Foster, Brundidge
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Mayor Mark Saliba, Dothan

Mayor Bob Bunting, Ozark

Mayor Billy Cooper, Enterprise

Mayor Robert Eliiot (Ed) Beasley, Luverne

Harold Spicer, Elba

Mayor Dexter McLendon, Greenville

J.J. Jaxon, Jr., Eufaula
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2016

Additions

Other

TRANSMISSION PLANT
Mains
$
The Waters - section A		
The Waters - section B
Intake & border stations
Lateral AEC & SEAGD
20” pipeline - SEAGD portion
20” pipeline - AEC portion
Other
Total

17,620,962		 $
4,201,486			
5,783,406			
4,076,932 			
8,315,445			
4,362,783			
5,546			
875,304			
45,241,864			

197,911
24,641
35,922
258,474

DISTRIBUTION PLANT
Expansion - Ashford & Cottonwood
Snowden project
The Waters - section C		
Fort Rucker
Opelika
Brannon Stand
Mains
Services
Meters & installations
Regulators & installation		
Measuring & regulating
Structures		
Land
Other		
Total

2,778,073			
1,012,027			
332,679		
610,244			
6,305,657			
586,953			
36,047,801		
17,446,408			
8,201,489			
2,546,152			
904,479			
210,024			
14,523			
3,532,267			
80,528,776			

816,448
895,528
357,843
32,135
4,321
7,760
2,114,035

12,529			

-

PRODUCTION PLANT

$

Total Gas Utility Plant
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$

147,934,425		 $

$
-			
-

12,529

(6,610 )
(26,172 )
(110,289 )
(143,071 )

9,423,407
2,390,096		
5,588,545
942,514
760,605
503,824
648,343
3,538,992
23,796,326

$

(235,001 )

17,818,873
4,201,486
5,783,406
4,101,573
8,315,445
4,362,783
5,546
911,226
45,500,338
2,778,073
1,012,027
332,679
610,244
6,305,657
586,953
36,861,312
18,289,250
8,523,025
2,578,287
908,800
210,024
22,283
3,532,267
82,550,881

-

4,241,518

2017

(2,937 )
(52,686 )
(36,307 )
(91,930 )

GENERAL PLANT		
Structures
8,810,962			
619,055
Office furniture & equipment
2,351,216			
65,052
Transportation equipment
5,023,312			
675,522
Tools
936,357			
6,157
Communication equipment
759,906			
699
Stores & laboratory equipment
489,223			
14,601
Land
648,343			
Computer software
3,051,069			
487,923
Total
22,070,388			
1,869,009
ORGANIZATION, FRANCHISE CONSENTS,
AND INTANGIBLE PLANT		
80,868			

September 30,

80,868
$

151,940,942		

service map

southeastgas . com

715 MLK JR. EXPRESSWAY
P.O. BOX 1338
ANDALUSIA , AL 36420

1-800-660-8683

